ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2006
1:12 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lesil McGQiire, Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Pete Kott
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Les Gara
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 172
"An Act relating to the presentation of initiatives and
referenda on the ballot."

- MOVED HCS SB 172(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 132

"An Act relating to conplaints filed wth, investigations,
hearings, and orders of, and the interest rate on awards of the
State Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts; making conform ng anendnents;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HCS SB 132(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 379
"An Act relating to controlled substances.™

- MOVED CSHB 379(JUD) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 373

"An Act relating to the manufacture and transportation of
al coholic beverages; relating to forfeitures of property for
vi ol ations of al coholic Dbeverage |aws; and relating to
viol ations of al coholic beverage | aws."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -1- February 6, 2006



HOUSE BI LL NO. 295
"An Act adopting the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer
relating to fraudul ent transfers of property.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 172

SHORT TI TLE: | NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM BALLOT SUMVARY
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) THERRI AULT

Act

and

04/ 13/ 05 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 13/ 05 (S) STA

04/ 19/ 05 (S STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 19/ 05 (S Moved SB 172 Qut of Commttee

04/ 19/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 20/ 05 (9 STA RPT 4DP

04/ 20/ 05 (S DP: THERRI AULT, WAGONER, HUGGE NS, DAVI S
04/ 25/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 25/ 05 (S) VERSI ON: SB 172

04/ 26/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 26/ 05 (H STA, JUD

05/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 05/ 05 (H Moved HCS SB 172(STA) Qut of Committee
05/ 05/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

05/ 05/ 05 (H) STA RPT HCS(STA) 4DP 2NR

05/ 05/ 05 (H DP: LYNN, GATTO ELKINS, SEATON;

05/ 05/ 05 (H NR: GARDNER, GRUENBERG

05/ 07/ 05 (H) JUD AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 120

05/ 07/ 05 (H Meeti ng Postponed to 12 noon 5/8/05
05/ 08/ 05 (H JUD AT 12: 00 AM CAPI TCL 120

05/ 08/ 05 (H) Meet i ng Post poned

05/ 09/ 05 (H JUD AT 0: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

05/ 09/ 05 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

02/ 03/ 06 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 03/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 06/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: SB 132

SHORT TI TLE: HUVAN RI GHTS COWM SSI ON

SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 04/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 17/ 05 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE

- 2- February 6, 2006



03/ 17/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 05 (S STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 29/ 05 (S) Moved SB 132 Qut of Committee
03/ 29/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 30/ 05 (9 STA RPT 3NR 1AM

03/ 30/ 05 (S) NR. THERRI AULT, WAGONER, HUGGE NS
03/ 30/ 05 (S) AM DAVI S

04/ 07/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 07/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 08/ 05 (H JUD AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 08/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 14/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 14/ 05 (S) Moved SB 132 Qut of Committee
04/ 14/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 14/ 05 (S JUD RPT 1DP 2NR 2AM

04/ 14/ 05 (S) DP: SEEKI NS

04/ 14/ 05 (S) NR: THERRI AULT, HUGA NS

04/ 14/ 05 (S) AM FRENCH, GUESS

04/ 21/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 21/ 05 (S) VERSI ON:  SB 132( EFD FLD)

04/ 22/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
04/ 22/ 05 (H STA, JUD

05/ 03/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 03/ 05 (H Heard & Held

05/ 03/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

05/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 05/ 05 (H Moved HCS SB 132(STA) Qut of Conmittee
05/ 05/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

05/ 05/ 05 (H STA RPT HCS(STA) 4DP 1AM

05/ 05/ 05 (H) DP: LYNN, GATTO, ELKINS, SEATON:
05/ 05/ 05 (H AM  GRUENBERG

05/ 05/ 05 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

05/ 05/ 05 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

05/ 06/ 05 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

05/ 06/ 05 (H Heard & Held

05/ 06/ 05 (H M NUTE( JUD)

05/ 07/ 05 (H RULES TO CALENDAR PENDI NG REPORT
05/ 07/ 05 (H) I N JUDI Cl ARY

05/ 08/ 05 (H RULES TO CALENDAR PENDI NG REPORT
05/ 08/ 05 (H | N JUDI Cl ARY

05/ 09/ 05 (H JUD AT 0: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

05/ 09/ 05 (H Heard & Held

05/ 09/ 05 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 18/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 18/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

01/ 25/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 3- February 6, 2006



01/ 25/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
02/ 01/ 06 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 01/ 06 (H) -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 03/ 06 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 03/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
02/ 06/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 379
SHORT TITLE: CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, |NCL. ANALOGS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MEYER

01/ 18/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 06 (H JUD, FIN

01/ 27/ 06 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 27/ 06 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 27/ 06 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 06/ 06 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

JCE BALASH, Staff

to Senator Gene Therriault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 172 on behalf of Senator
Therriault, sponsor.

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Chief of Staff

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the |ieutenant governor's position
on SB 172.

RANDY RUARQO, Legi sl ative Liaison

Depart nent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the admnistration's position on
SB 132.

M CHAEL PAW.OWBKI, St aff

to Representative Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented anendnents to HB 379 on behal f of
Representati ve Meyer, sponsor.

CHRI S BEHEI M Super vi sor

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 4- February 6, 2006



Scientific Crinme Detection Laboratory

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 379.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR LESIL MGIRE called the House Judiciary Standing

Conmittee neeting to order at 1:12:49 PM Representati ves
McCGQuire, Guenberg, Kott, Coghill, and WIson were present at
the call to order. Representatives Gara and Anderson arrived as

the nmeeting was in progress.

SB 172 - | NI TI ATl VE/f REFERENDUM BALLOT SUMVARY

1:13: 59 PM

CHAl R MCGAUJI RE announced that the first order of business would
be SENATE BILL NO 172, "An Act relating to the presentation of
initiatives and referenda on the ballot."

1: 14: 09 PM

JOE BALASH, Staff to Senator Gene Therriault, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented SB 172 on behalf of Senator Therriault,
sponsor. He said the bill is sinple. Current statutes provide
that once an initiative petition has been certified, the
i eutenant governor is required to prepare a ballot title and
summary, which is the sane for referenda. He stated that under
existing law the ballot title nust indicate the general subject
of the proposition and may not exceed six words, and the summary
must be inpartial and not nore than 100 words.

1: 15: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved to adopt a proposed House committee
substitute (HCS) for SB 172, version 24-LS0859\P, Kurtz,
2/03/03, as a working docunent. There being no objection,
Version P was before the commttee.

MR. BALASH said SB 172 speaks to the lieutenant governor's duty
of titling and sunmarizing voter initiatives and referenda. He
stated that the current six-word limt for titles is becomng a
l[imtation to increasingly conplex initiatives and |egislative
| aws, and he gave an exanple of recent legislation where the
title was a page and a half |ong. The bill's intent is to
provide an accurate description of the issues that are before
the voters, he said. He noted that the original Senate version

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 5- February 6, 2006



only addressed the nunber of words in the title, and the current
CS addresses the nunber of words for the summary, which is 100
words for each section. An initiative section is defined as a
provision that is different in purpose or subject matter, and a
referendum section wll be defined by Legislative Legal and
Research Services, he added.

1:18: 06 PM
MR. BALASH relayed that the version of SB 172 that passed the

Senate contained a change in the maxi mum nunber of words in the
title from6 to 25. The House State Affairs Standing Conmittee

then added provisions |imting the tinme allowed for the
i eutenant governor to prepare the title and summary, but the
current |ieutenant governor said he had concerns with that, so

Senator Therriault agreed to drop those provisions.
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked for clarification on Section 3.
MR. BALASH told himhe was | ooking at Version X

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said there was a tine |limtation anendnent by the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee, and the |ieutenant
governor expressed that it may not be enough tine to do a good
j ob. The big change in the current version is the renoval of
the deadline and putting the effective date back in again, she
expl ai ned.

1:22: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rel ayed that he is not aware of the
problens [the lieutenant governor's office] has with [the tine
[imt provisions]. He said there was care taken to put the
amendnent in, and he is not inclined to take it out. He said
the provision was added because sonetines people challenge the
| i eutenant governor's wording, "and this has caused a problem on
several occasions very recently.” He said that a final version
[of an initiative or referendun] issued only a short tinme before
the election doesn't allow time for a legal challenge to nake

certain the law is conplied with. "This will make it difficult
to challenge what the |ieutenant governor does if we don't
provi de enough tinme to do it, and it wll require the court

system to hear these things on an energency basis, and it wll
require, sonetines even, the printing of two sets of ballots.”
He said the |ieutenant governor certainly should have the tine
to prepare initiatives in enough tine to allow for people to
study them It is a reasonable request, and the policy of not

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 6- February 6, 2006



doing it encourages problematic synopses and titles, he stated
"That is a good public policy to advance, and | have no idea why
they don't want to have an adequate judicial review " he said.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE noted that the tinme |limt is "really the only
substantive issue that we're addressing.” She said the word-
limt aspects of the bill are not under debate, but there may be
a desire for a discussion on the effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he did not recall seeing an
effective date in the original bill.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said it was immediate as it passed the Senate, and
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee renoved that. She
said she would like to see an imedi ate effective date.

1: 25: 35 PM

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Chief of Staff, Ofice of the Lieutenant
Governor, said Representative Guenberg called her wth a
concern that 30 days may not be enough time, and she told him
she would take a look at it. She said it was unfortunate that
the anmendment was adopted by the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee to "address the situation that Representati ve
G uenberg referenced.” She said Representative Guenberg was
concerned that sonmeone nmay sue over the Ilanguage of an
initiative. She stated that the problem with putting a 30-day
deadline on the |ieutenant governor doesn't solve that problem
"There are people who will sue at any tinme that it suits themto
sue, and so telling us that we have to have our work done 30
days after the legislative session doesn't solve that problem"”

M5. KREI TZER said she spoke with the chair of the House State
Affairs Standing Coonmittee and "hashed through this because the
committee mnutes don't really get to why this anendnent was

adopted.” She said her office does not put a tinme limt on the
Departnment of Law to provide |egal guidance. "W are waiting to
see what the legislature does, whether they pass |egislation
that is simlar to an initiative." She said there are severa

initiatives this year that the |egislature nay act on. She said
her office keeps the Departnent of Law (DOL) "pretty busy,” and
doesn't want to keep them any busier with initiatives that may
or may not go forward. "So we wait until the end of the
session," she rel ayed.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he sees the problem but perhaps
it can be solved without renoving all deadlines. He suggested a

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -7- February 6, 2006



deadline for filing a l|egal challenge. He pointed out that
el ection challenges are limted to a very brief period, "and
this is a type of an election challenge.” He surm sed that M.
Kreitzer is envisioning a case in which an initiative is trunped
by legislation, but he characterized this as a red herring
because if a legislative bill trunps the initiative, then the
whol e point is noot. He then acknow edged that sonmeone m ght
chal lenge the contention that the bill is the sane as the
initiative. He said he is not certain how to solve the problem
"but I do think it's a bad idea not to have the process noving
along and have the whole thing in a log jam at the very end--
even after the election panphlet [is] printed." He asked for a
suggesti on.

1: 30: 28 PM

MS. KREI TZER said she doesn't know that there is a problem She
relayed that her office works with opponents and proponents of
initiatives nonthly. She said the |ieutenant governor's website
shows that "we could have cone into this session wth five
initiatives having been certified by the I|ieutenant governor."
She said as soon as an initiate is turned in, the staff is
working on the l|anguage for the petition booklets, which is
probably simlar to the ballot |anguage. "“Al though, 1'Il tell
you there are two of them right now that were unhappy to start
with." She said one is O5HUNT [An Act prohibiting the shooting
of wolves and grizzly bears with the use of aircraft]. "
talked with those folks and they had a concern about the
| anguage that the Departnment of Law had proposed for their
initiative." She said she raised the issues wth DOL, and the
attorney agreed with the initiative sponsors, so the |ieutenant
governor's office changed the | anguage. Regarding the pesticide
initiative, she said, "Their attorney disagrees with the state's
attorney." Her office works with the initiative groups all
al ong, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understanding that for an
initiative to be on the ballot, it has to be in by the time the
| egi sl ature convenes.

M5. KREITZER said that is true if it is to go on the 2006
general election. She said there are two already on the 2006
primary, which has a different deadline.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that was the previous year, so "in

order to get on the ballot for the primary, they have to be in
by the odd nunbered year, so you have alnbst two years to deal

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 8- February 6, 2006



with that." He said the shortest [timefrane] is for the genera
el ection, which need to be in by the second Mynday in January,
so the staff have 151 days under this legislation to deal wth
t he problem

M5. KREITZER clarified that "when you turn in an initiative you
have one year from the tinme you get your petition booklets to
file with the |ieutenant governor's office.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said if the |I|ieutenant governor's
office is saying it needs enough time, the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee CS gives the office at |least 151 days to "do

this." He noted that that is reasonable because it is four and
one half nonths from the el ection. "And then we give people a
reasonabl e period of time to file their challenge, and then the
court system has the tine to proceed. That's all we were
aski ng. "

1:34: 04 PM

CHAIR MCGUI RE noted that the chair of the House State Affairs
Standing Committee visited her and "renoved his desire to see
this in here, along with the sponsor of the bill." She said
when the conmittee addressed the issue before it had "this
idealized look at it, but when they really sat down and | ooked

at it wth the Dvision of Elections in the |ieutenant
governor's office, it didn't seemto nake sense—the problem that
the amendnents were addressing really wasn't fixed." She said
she didn't disagree with Representative Guenberg, but that she
needed nore information. She said 30 days was not enough
[tinme], especially if it is a ballot neasure that the
| egi slature wants to trunp. She stated that it is a waste of
time to give an artificial deadline. The |egislation would
"have to be married wth sone kind of Ilimtation on the
plaintiff's right to then go ahead and bring the action.” She

said she does not know what the right anount of time would be
and she does not want to shoot in the dark at figures. Her gut
feeling, she offered, is that there isn't a way to fix the
conplete | ogjam and the chaos "because zeal ous advocates on both
sides are going to use whatever they have right up to the |ast
m nute."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated that he would be anenable to

giving the |ieutenant governor 60 plus 30 days, and that would
give the courts several nonths to | ook at the situation.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 9- February 6, 2006



CHAIR MCGUI RE said she has not been given conpelling evidence
that "this is a trenmendous problem™ She suggested noving
forward with the three other bills.

1:37: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said there are start and finish
deadl i nes, which are the general and primary elections. He
added that "the Ilegal challenge can happen anywhere in that
arena, so | think that any person proactive enough to get a
petition ...."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is not tal king about chall enges
to the initiative itself, only to the title and the synopsis.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "Then you have to put it in a
booklet...and that's where the rub's going to cone." He noted
that there is a publishing deadline, so "there is a series of
deadl i nes already where the verbiage is going to be vetted very
clearly."” He added that denocracy can be nessy, "but everyone
gets a bite at the apple.”

CHAIR MCGUI RE said that her point is that in inposing a deadline
for describing the ballot title, "you face the argunent about
substantial simlarity because you may not know what it's going
to be yet." The | egislature adjourning doesn't mean anyt hing,
she noted, and there could be a lot of energy going forward
before realizing it is not to be.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the bill does not deal with the
[initiative].

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said it deals with what is going to be on the
ball ot itself.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it is the initiative, and the
initiative canme in its final formno later than the first day of
t he session.

CHAI R MCCGUI RE asked, "But will it be on or not?"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said if it is not on, then it would be
a noot point, "but they can certainly draft this anytime from
the first day of the session on. And if it's pulled it's
pulled."

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -10- February 6, 2006



CHAIR MCGU RE surmised then that Representative Guenberg's
point is to spend the time drafting it no natter what.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d yes.

M5. KREI TZER said that the |ieutenant governor understands that
as initiatives becone nore conplex, nore words nmay be necessary
to describe them She said he clearly understands those limt
changes, but the |anguage adopted in the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee was adopted wthout consulting with his
office. She said the office has a web site with initiatives and

where they stand. It is a dynam c process, she said, and the
| i eutenant governor is still in litigation over the cruise ship
initiative. She asked what the anmendnment would do for an
initiative that 1is "still out there.” She stated, "The
| i eutenant governor has been on the other end. Constitutiona
amendnent; definition of marriage. He's been on the other end
of telling the |ieutenant governor he didn't |ike her | anguage.

W didn't sue,” she said. She added that he felt that it was
the |ieutenant governor's prerogative and it was incunbent on
those who supported it to go out and get support for their
constitutional amendnent. She added that it is a new era where
peopl e sue over initiatives, and she does not see an arbitrary
deadl i ne as sol ving that problem

1:44: 25 PM

WH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, D vision of Elections, said the
fiscal inpact of increasing the wording in the ballot title is

zero but there will be a fiscal inpact to increasing the wording
of the sunmary section. She gave an exanple of an initiative
that has 16 sections, which could be summarized wth 1,625
words, or 10 tines the previous limts. Printing costs, which
was $300,000 for the 2004 election, could double, she noted.
She added that approxinmately 800 words will fit on a ballot, so
sonme initiatives would cover two ballots if the |ieutenant
governor decided to use the maxi mum nunber of words allowed in
the bill. She said it would increase shipping, nmailing,

transl ati ng and envel ope costs.
CHAI R MCGQUI RE said the fiscal note will be forthcom ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the increase will be $300,000 plus
the listed postal costs.

M5. BREWSTER said yes, and she hasn't factored in the cost of
the initiative material that the initiative sponsors use.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -11- February 6, 2006



1:49: 12 PM

JOHN  SHI VELY, Vice President, Gover nient and Community
Rel ations, Holland Anerica, said he is in support of the CS. He
said his conpany is facing a conplex initiative that is nine
pages long with a nunber of sections. He thinks voters should
be educated on what they are voting on, and the "whole
initiative should be on the ballot,” reducing the risk of
| awsui ts. He said it would be wunrealistic and expensive,
however. He urged adoption of the CS

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he has nmjor concerns about a provision

the [cruise ship] industry requested be added to the bill. He
said the industry wants initiatives to use up to 100 words per
secti on. He said the longer the description, the nore

convoluted it can be, which may deter a voter from signing an
initiative. He acknow edged that there may be conplex bills
requiring further explanation, but "it seenms to ne you can
describe any bill in 100 words." He suggested allow ng the
i eutenant governor to attach additional material that would
give the voter the option to read. Telling the |ieutenant
governor to give a 1,500-word description that a voter would
need to read prior to signing an initiative "causes the m schi ef
of over-information to the point that you are going to deter
people fromsigning the initiative," he surm sed.

MR. SHI VELY said he disagrees with Representative Gara and
suggested that people would wite less confusing initiatives if
the CS were to pass. He said very few people even read an
initiative. "They get a little statenment from the person that
has the petition book™ before deciding to sign, he said, and if
Representative Gara is suggesting that voters get confused wth
too nuch information, that is not "what denocracy is about."

REPRESENTATI VE GARA clarified that he wanted to offer voters the
information, not withhold it. It would be an optional statenent
that a voter could choose to read. He noted that he has
understood the petitions that he has signed in the past.

MR. SHI VELY said he is not as concerned about the petition book
itself as he is about the ballot; it is inportant to have
addi ti onal explanations for people in the voting booth.

1:55:18 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -12- February 6, 2006



CHAI R MCQUI RE cl osed public testinony, and noted that Version P
was before the conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, which, wth
handwitten corrections, read [original punctuation provided]:

p.1., line 7:
Del ete "25"
| nsert " 15"
p.2., line 1:
Del ete "25"
| nsert " 15"

CHAI R MCGUI RE obj ected for purposes of discussion.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA opined that the voters need enough
information to "understand what they're voting on. You can
perform m schief by letting the |ieutenant governor's office add
additional words in a way where they can frankly confuse things
for the wvoters.” He said that has happened in recent
initiatives causing litigation. He added that he can't think of
a recent initiative where the subject can't be described in 15
words. It will be followed by the 100-word statenent anyway, he
stated, and he gave exanples. By allowing 25 words, it wll
"allow a |ieutenant governor who's trying to tank an initiative
the ability to obfuscate when they should be clarifying for
voters."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that the bills in his packet all
have nore than 15 words in the headi ngs.

1:57:55 PM

MR. BALASH noted that what is mssing fromthe commttee packets
is a conparison of past initiatives with prepared summaries. He
said he has two initiatives, both with 29 words as witten by
the initiative sponsors. He said 25 words are too nmany in many
i nstances and perhaps too few for others, so rather than err on
the side of restrictions, Senator Therriault decided to err on
the side of caution by giving the |ieutenant governor
flexibility.

CHAIR MCAQURE remnded the commttee that the |ieutenant

governor could be wth the opposite political party in the
future.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -13- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GARA said initiative sponsors were never asked to
[imt thenselves to 15 words, which could have easily been done
for the aforenentioned initiatives.

2: 00: 13 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Gara voted in favor
of Amendnent 1. Representatives Mc@iire, Coghill, WIson, Kott,
Anderson and Gruenberg voted against it. Therefore, Anmendnent 1
failed by a vote of 1-6.

2:00: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Amendnent 2, |abeled 24-
LSO0859\ X. 2, Kurtz, 2/3/06, which was edited with handwitten
notes to read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 8:
Delete "for each section”

Page 1, lines 9 - 11:

Delete "In this subsection, "section"™ neans a
provision of the proposed law that is distinct from
ot her provisions in purpose or subject matter."

Page 1, following line 10:
I nsert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 2. AS 15.45.180 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(c) If the lieutenant governor believes it is
necessary for a better understanding by the public of
a bill that is the subject of an initiative, the

| i eut enant governor may prepare an additional analysis
that clearly and concisely states the purposes of the
proposed initiative. The analysis nay not exceed 100
words a section. If, under this subsection, an
additional analysis of a bill is prepared, a person
circulating the initiative petition for that bill
shall advise, both in witing and orally, each voter
from whom the person seeks a signature that the
additional analysis is available for review by the
voter. A circulator shall have the additional analysis
avai lable for imediate inspection by the voter when
circulating a petition. In this subsection, "section”
means a provision of the proposed initiative that is
distinct from other provisions in purpose or subject
matter."

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -14- February 6, 2006



Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 1, line 15, through page 2, line 1
Del ete "for each section”

Page 2, lines 1 - 4:

Delete "In this subsection, "section" neans each
section of the Alaska statutes created, anended, or
repealed in the Act, and each section of the Act that
does not create or anend codified | aw. "

Page 2, line 5:
Del ete "a new subsecti on”
| nsert "new subsecti ons"

Page 2, following line 7:
I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(d) If the lieutenant governor believes it is
necessary for a better understanding by the public of
an Act that is the subject of a referendum the
| i eut enant governor mmy prepare an additional analysis
that clearly and concisely states the purposes of the
Act. The analysis may not exceed 100 words a section
| f an additional analysis of an Act has been prepared,
a person circulating the referendum petition for that
Act shall advise, both in witing and orally, each
voter from whom the person seeks a signature that the
additional analysis is available for review by the
voter. A circulator shall have the additional analysis
avai lable for imediate inspection by the voter when
circulating a petition. In this subsection, "section”
means each section of the Alaska statutes created,
anended, or repealed in the Act, and each section of
the Act that does not create or anend codified |aw "

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expl ained that Anmendnment 2 addresses the

cruise ship industry proposed provision. He said the |ogica
order of discussing a bill is not necessarily the sanme order as
the sections of the bill. The provision wll Jlead to a
di sjointed description of a bill, he noted. "First you' re going
to discuss, in a hundred words, a very discrete part of the bil

in Section 1, and then a very discrete part of the bill in
Section 2," and so on. He said the bill is probably better

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 15- February 6, 2006



described as a whole, instead of Ilittle pieces of disjointed
descriptions on a section-by-section basis, which wll be
conf usi ng. He further stated that 100 words per section in a
15-section bill is a 1500-word description, and "that's m nd-
boggling." He said if the |ieutenant governor doesn't |ike an
initiative and wants to defeat it, the initiative will be buried
in excess words designed to confuse people. He said Arendnent 2
states that if there needs to be nore than 100 words the
circulator shall carry around a sectional attachnent.

CHAIR MCGUI RE asked if Anmendnment 2 "renoves it from the ball ot
itself and puts it into the petition that is circulated."”

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that the amendnent addresses the
petition, and he will do a conceptual amendnent to deal with the
ballot if Amendnent 2 passes. He said the ballot should have a
conprehensive 100-word description wth a nore detailed
description that foll owed. He said the ballot shouldn't be
witten so that the bill title is followed directly by a
di sj oi nted sectional analysis.

2:04: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he is sonewhat synpathetic, and he
has never been a big fan of having to read a ballot for a half
hour before voting; however, the nature of petitions is becom ng
nor e conpl ex. He said he felt that voters did not understand a
past billboard vote because of the limted wording. He added
“"if we're going to allow people to have that access to direct
denocracy, it has to be with sone deliberation, and that neans
you have to have the information in front of them"™ He said
that was what canpaigns were for. He said canpaigns give people
an idea of what is going to be on the ballot, He noted that
"brand new verbiage before you get to the ballot--you will feel
that you have been had by your government."” He said he would be
nervous about not having a summary of a section. "If we're
going to go to the people and say you want to change a whol e
title of your law, then they better get a good shot at it." He
concluded that 100 words mght represent the changing of 1,000
words in | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he doesn't disagree with those points,
but a 100-word description of the bill should come first. | f
the |ieutenant governor decides the issue is conplex, then a
section by section explanation can follow, he said, "but you' ve
got to make it readable, and the sectional wthout a sponsor
statenent, like we do in our bills ... is not readable."

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 16- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed but pointed out that there are no
sponsor statenments on ballots. The description should be read
by voters in the el ection booklet, he said.

CHAI R MCGUI RE sai d, "You hope people do it, but

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said every registered voter gets a
panphl et .

2:08: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA wi t hdrew Anendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved Conceptual Anmendnent 3, hoping to neld
his concerns with Representative Coghill's concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON obj ected for di scussion.
REPRESENTATI VE GARA sai d Conceptual Amendnent 3 will be:

For both the circulating petition that people read
when they're signing the initiative and for the

ballot, there shall be a statenent of the bill that is
up to 100 words, which is just like the current |aw
right now. Following the statenent of the bill, if

the |ieutenant governor determ nes that the 100 words
wasn't enough, there shall be a sectional of up to 100
wor ds per section.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that, "this way you have in

laynen's ternms 100 words that describe the bill to people, and
then the analysis that goes section by section. If you don't
have the laynen's description first, it's going to be very

confusing for people in the ballot box and when they're
signing."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that the title has been expanded to
25 words, which nearly constitutes a summary. "I'"'m happy that
25 words can get that done," he added. He said he is concerned
that a policy statenent and then the specifics could weary the
vot er.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE remarked that the nice thing about the bill 1is
that it currently says "in not nore than 100 words." She said
it doesn't have to be 100 words and that goes to the spirit of
[ conceptual anmendnent 3]. She stated that it is absolutely

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -17- February 6, 2006



critical that people understand what they are voting on, and
when she reads a bill she tries to skip the sponsor statenent
and read what a bill really does because it is easy to gloss
over details in the statenent. She added that she is
confortable with the proposed change, but she doesn't know how
it wll play out in reality. She thinks it wll be nore
informative to describe the sections, but she does not have a
"burni ng opposition" to the anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that a sponsor statenent in a bill
could present a one-sided argunent, but the law on initiatives

and referenda is that it must be objective. The 100-word
statenent has to be objective. The sponsor of the bill doesn't
think the 25-word title is enough, he argued. A |ieutenant

governor who is trying to play ganmes is going to use 100 words
for every section, and that is why a one-tinme concise statenent
IS necessary, he stated.

2:14: 13 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Gara and G uenberg
voted in favor of Conceptual Anendnent 3. Represent ati ves
McGQuire, Coghill, WIson, Kott and Anderson voted against it.

Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 3 failed by a vote of 2-5.
2:14: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 4.
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG rel ayed that Anendnent 4 goes back to
the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee CS with the addition
of a requirement that any suit challenging the wording of the
ballot title or proposition nust be filed within 30 days of
being submitted to the director. He said it gives the
adm nistration 120 days to prepare the title and the summary.
He noted that it is certainly adequate, and it gives another 30
days for a total of 151 days. He said that the people
challenging will only have 30 days to file a suit, and it wll
allow the process to proceed in an orderly fashion wthout the
expense of printing two sets of ballots. He then surm sed that
he may have caused an inadvertent problem regarding the date the
el ecti on panphl et needs to be in.

MS. KREI TZER recollected that it is July 1 or August 1.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 18- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thought it was July 1, which
m ght make his deadlines too | ong.

M5. KREITZER said that is not the only problem with the
deadl i nes. She said there is another deadline for absentee
ball ots, but she would be willing to work with himto solve the
probl em

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG w t hdrew Anendnent 4.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 5
| abel ed 24-1LS0859\X. 1, Kurtz, 2/3/06, as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

Page 1, line 4, follow ng "governor":
| nsert "shal | appoi nt a ball ot pr oposi ti on
comrittee to prepare”

Page 1, line 5:
Del ete "shall prepare”
| nsert "[ SHALL PREPARE]"

Page 1, following line 10:
Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 2. AS 15.45.180 is anended by adding new
subsections to read:

(c) The |ieutenant governor shall appoint five
individuals to the ballot proposition commttee
i ncl udi ng

(1) two proponents of the initiative, at
| east one of whom nust be a nmenber of the initiative
conmittee;

(2) two opponents of the initiative; and

(3) one individual from a list of three
submtted by the chief justice of the Al aska Suprene
Court.

(d) The conmittee shall submit the ballot title
and proposition to the I|ieutenant governor not |ater
than 30 days after the date of the adjournnent of the
first regular legislative session convened after the
petition is filed.

(e) The |ieutenant governor shall review the
ballot title and proposition prepared under (a) of
this section and make any changes necessary to make

the proposition true and inpartial. Not later than 10
days after receiving the ballot title and proposition
from the conmttee, the |ieutenant governor shal

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -19- February 6, 2006



conplete the review and provide the ballot title and
proposition to the director. If the 1ieutenant
governor makes any changes to the ballot title or
proposition prepared under (a) of this section, the
i eutenant governor shall also provide the director
with a witten explanation of those changes."

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 1, lines 12 - 14:

Delete "The [|ieutenant gover nor, with the
assistance of the attorney general, shall prepare a
ballot title and proposition upon determ ning that the
petition is properly filed"

Insert "If the petition is properly filed, the
I i eut enant governor shall appoint a ballot proposition
comrittee to prepare, wth the assistance of the
attorney general, a ballot title and proposition [THE
LI EUTENANT GOVERNOR, WTH THE ASSI STANCE OF THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL, SHALL PREPARE A BALLOT TITLE AND
PROPCSI TION UPON DETERM NING THAT THE PETITION IS
PROPERLY FI LED] "

Page 2, lines 5 - 7:
Delete all material and insert:
"* Sec. 4. AS 15.45.410 is anmended by adding new
subsections to read:
(c) The |ieutenant governor shall appoint five
individuals to the ballot proposition conmittee
i ncl udi ng
(1) two proponents of the referendum at
| east one of whom nust be a nenber of the referendum

conmi ttee;

(2) two opponents of the referendum and

(3) one individual from a list of three
submtted by the chief justice of the Al aska Suprene
Court.

(d) The conmittee shall submt the ballot title
and proposition to the I|ieutenant governor not |ater
than 55 days after the date the petition is filed.

(e) The lieutenant governor shall review the
ballot title and proposition prepared under (a) of
this section and make any changes necessary to make

the proposition true and inpartial. Not later than
five days after receiving the ballot title and
proposition from the conmttee, the |ieutenant

governor shall conplete the review and provide the

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 20- February 6, 2006



ballot title and proposition to the director. If the
| i eutenant governor nmakes any changes to the ball ot
title or proposition prepared wunder (a) of this

section, the Ilieutenant governor shall also provide
the director with a witten explanation of those
changes. "

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the original concept was proposed by
Senator Elton's office. The anendnent addresses tines when the
| i eutenant governor is hostile to a petition, and to prevent a
I ieutenant governor from confusing voters it requires a
committee to draft the |anguage. The committee will consist of
two nmenbers who support the initiative and two who oppose it and
one nenber appointed by the court, he explained. He said it
will hopefully lead to a nore objective sunmary, especially
since the legislation before the commttee wll lead to nore
m schief by the |ieutenant governor's office. The sunmmary will
then be reviewed by the |ieutenant governor, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she doesn't think the anmendnent wl|
do anything because the individuals will be appointed by the
| i eut enant gover nor.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the lieutenant governor would be
[imted in those four appointnents, and the court would appoint
the fifth person.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE remarked that the amendnent is interesting but it
is alnost a conpletely new bill, and she will oppose it because
she has not had tinme to speak with the bill's sponsor.

2:21:48 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Gara and G uenberg
voted in favor of Conceptual Anendnent 5. Represent ati ves
McCGuire, Coghill, WIson, Kott and Anderson voted against it.
Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 5 failed by a vote of 2-5.

2:22:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON nobved to report the proposed House
commttee substitute (HCS) for SB 172, version 24-LS0859\P,
Kurtz, 2/03/03, out of commttee with individual recomendations
and the acconpanying fiscal notes. Hearing no objections, HCS
SB 172(JUD) was reported out of the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -21- February 6, 2006



MR. BALASH announced that the fiscal note would be forthcom ng.

SB 132 - HUVAN RI GHTS COW SSI ON

2:23: 44 PM

CHAI R MCGUI RE announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 132, "An Act relating to conplaints filed wth,
i nvestigations, hearings, and orders of, and the interest rate
on awards of the State Commission for Human Rights; rmaking
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

2:24:28 PM

RANDY RUARO, Legislative Liaison, Departnent of Law, suggested
that the commttee deal with a pending anendnment offered by
Representative Gara.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he will not offer Anendnent 5
The commttee took an at-ease from2:26 p.m to 2:29 p.m
2:29:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved Anmendnent 6, |abeled 24-GS1110\G 1,
Kane, 1/18/ 06, as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 2:

Del ete "and"

Insert "providing for attorney fees and costs in
cases invol ving human rights violations;"

Page 1, line 3, follow ng "amendnents":

Insert "; and anmending Rule 82, Al aska Rules of
Civil Procedure"

Page 6, following line 15:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 11. AS 18.80 is anmended by adding a new

section to article 2 to read:

Sec. 18.80.147. Attorney fees and costs. (a) In
an action brought by a person under AS 22.10.020(i), a
prevailing plaintiff shall be awarded costs as
provided by court rule and full reasonable attorney
fees at the prevailing reasonable rate.

(b) Unless the action is found to be frivol ous,
in an action br ought by a per son under

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -22- February 6, 2006



AS 22.10.020(i), a prevailing defendant shall be
awarded attorney fees and costs as provided by court
rule. If the action is found to be frivolous, the
attorney fees to be awarded to the defendant shall be
full reasonable attorney fees at the prevailing
reasonabl e rate.
(c) In this section, "frivolous" neans

(1) not reasonably based on evidence or on
existing law or a reasonable extension, nodification,
or reversal of existing |law, or

(2) brought to harass the defendant or to
cause unnecessary del ay or needl ess expense."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 7, followng line 3:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 15. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska is anended by adding a new section to read:
| NDI RECT COURT RULE AMENDMENT. The provisions of
sec. 11 of this Act have the effect of changing Rule
82, Alaska Rules of G vil Procedure, by requiring the

award of full reasonable attorney fees in certain
cases."
Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 7, line 7:
Delete "secs. 1 - 13"
| nsert "secs. 1 - 14"
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that the Human R ghts Conm ssion

(HRC) is short-staff, which causes statute of Ilimtations
probl ens. He said the HRC cuts off <clains earlier and
represents fewer people. He noted that the mssion of the HRC

is to help people obtain justice if they were a victim of
di scrimnation, "and so the whole idea that we should solve a
probl em by saying, OK here's an easier way for you to represent
fewer people, doesn't really go to the mssion of the HCR"
Amendnent 6 adds | anguage used in a nunber of other areas of the
l aw, including consunmer protection and |andl ord/tenant statutes,
he said. He explained that if an individual prevails on a valid
claim that person will be entitled to conpensation for attorney
fees and costs. Currently, victins have difficulty getting an
attorney for small cases, he stated.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 23- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GARA told the comrittee that there is a concept
in the law called "privatizing the attorney general" that allows
a person to get a private attorney and get conpensated for
attorney fees if he or she prevails. He said it will save the
state noney, and it finds a renedy for true victins of
di scrim nati on. If a case is frivolous, the individual wll
have to pay for the defendant's costs, he said, creating a
disincentive for people to sue wth marginal clains. | t
protects people who are truly wvictinms of discrimnation

recognizes that the HRC is short-staffed and protects people
agai nst frivol ous clains, he concl uded.

2:34: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG di scussed the need for a two-thirds
majority to change procedural rules and whether or not this
anmendnent actually does that. He said he always thought Rule
82, Alaska Rules of Cvil Procedure, was an interpretive rule
and not a procedural rule, and thus the |legislature would only
need a majority to adopt this change.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that the legislative legal staff put
the requirement of a court rule change in the anendnent as a
note of caution.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if an attorney for the plaintiff
woul d get a contingency fee based on the contingent fee or the
Rul e 82 fee.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA offered his understanding that it is what
the court deternm nes is reasonabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that normally these cases are
taken on a contingent fee from a plaintiff, and a prevailing
reasonabl e rate indicates an hourly rate.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA concurr ed.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked if the language is identical to the |anguage
i n consumer protection |aws.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he has a cover letter fromthe D vision
of Legal and Research Services saying the |anguage was taken
directly from the Unfair Trade Practices Act provisions for
attorney fees.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 24- February 6, 2006



2:38:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if "frivol ous" has the same neaning
in the anendnent as in the Unfair Trade Practices Act.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said, "Yes, it would be a claimfiled with
no good faith basis in factor law "

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said his concern is that there would be

"differing bars” in human rights issues as opposed to | abor
practices. He added, "I'm just concerned that in human rights
frivolous mght have two probl ens. One is the chilling effect

of having a bar that mght be higher—+ don't know. The ot her
one is that in court, how you would have a subjective case
appear under the fair |abor standards. So |I'm just nervous; |
just don't know. And, are we inporting a standard that actually
applies in the situation that we're trying to apply it?"

CHAIR MCGQUIRE noted that Rule 11, Federal Rules of Guvil
Procedures, says that there nust be a good faith basis for

presenting a case. She said there is already a frivolity
el enent that nust be factored in. She added that this is just
extending it out, and it is not a new concept. In giving the

opportunity to recover reasonable attorney fees, Representative
Gara wants to nmake it clear that that shouldn't be an incentive
for people to get counsel. She offered an exanple wherein
soneone files a false claim against soneone and is sinply
abusing the system

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said |abor practice issues are nore
easily provable because there wll be enploynent and pay
records, whereas in human rights, frivolity could be harder to
prove.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that it really doesn't matter what
area of law, frivolous neans there were no true facts to support
aclaim

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that the bill has tinelines and
rules for conplaining, and now "you get down to ny word agai nst
your word in these particular cases."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there is also Rule 95, Al aska
Rules of Civil Procedure, and federal Rule 11 allows sanctions
if an attorney signs sonething that is frivolous. He added that
Al aska has gotten a bit away from that because Rule 95 was

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 25- February 6, 2006



adopted, which says an attorney can be fined up to $50,000 for
filing a frivolous |awsuit.

2:45:18 PM

MR. RUARO said there were four reasons to oppose Anmendnent 6.
He said the |anguage doesn't fit the title. The second reason
i s because Superior Court Judge Collins said the legislature is
restricted on enacting attorney fee rules by statute, he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG interjected to say, "I think she said
that we didn't do it by a two-thirds vote and have it conply
with the rule, but this would cure that problem"”

MR. RUARO said the other point is he doesn't know that there has
been a showing that current Rule 82 fees haven't been adequate
in these cases. "I don't know that there is a need for it."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked then why have a Human Rights

Commi ssi on. "I's it a safety valve or a whole new avenue?" he
qgueri ed. He said he is not sure if that is what the conmmttee
is going to do. He said, "Certainly, I'm not one that thinks

that if you're going to have a system of appeal based on your
human rights that you wouldn't want to bar a way to go to court.
But it seens to ne that we've designed a way to go through the
Human Ri ghts Conmmi ssi on. So now, if we start another avenue,
|"'m not too sure that that's the right policy call." He said
maybe it is worthwhile to have a recourse for an individual who
gets a wong decision from the HRC "If they refuse to make a
decision, | guess then the question would be what is the
recourse to an individual, because | think that's the intention
of the anmendnment,"” he said.

CHAIR MCGQU RE noted that the first approach was to give an
i ndividual a year to bring a case. But the HRC repeatedly said

there are sone legitimte cases that wll be "cut off" because
t he budget isn't enough to support the conmittee' s |anguage that
gives an individual a year to file. She said this [amendnent]

may not be the preferred route but there are human rights
violations occurring and the state does not want to nmake it a
priority by conmmtting to it in the budget beyond 180 days. She
said the first question to ask is if conmttee nenbers want to
commt to supporting plaintiffs beyond the 180-day limt, and if
not, nmenbers ought to vote against the anendnent and vote to
rescind the [provision] that increases the tinme period to 365
days. She said if nenbers believe in nmaking that tine
extension, there are only a couple of avenues to solve it. One

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 26- February 6, 2006



is to keep it there and provi de adequate funding and the second
is to do sonething akin to Anendnent 6. She agreed that it is a
policy shift, but the sanme thing is done for consuner
protection, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that the language is a way to expand
access to justice without spending state noney. The only other
alternative, he stated, was to tell the governor to put nore
money into the HRC The governor has decided not to do that.
He said people will have the option of going to the HRC or to

court. [ Those options] are not changing, he said, but an
i ndividual will be able to go to court "nore feasibly."
2:51:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said M. Ruaro raised two issues that
the commttee has not discussed, including the title, which can

be solved with a concurrent resolution. Wth regard to the
difficulty in getting counsel, he suggested that Representative
Gara speak to that since he has practiced in that area. He

noted that he had an equal -pay case and the only reason the case
could be carried through was because the standard was ful
attorney fees on an hourly basis. "So it is very inportant that
we do this,"” he opined. He spoke to Representative Coghill's
guestion of why have a HCR if Anendnent 6 passes. He said the
HCR has the authority not to take any case, just Ilike any
prosecutor, he said, and that [decision] is non-reviewable.

MR. RUARO said Representatives Guenberg and Gara are speaking
from the position of being solo practitioners, and he said he
once was an associate in a [law] firm and was a fixed cost to
that firm He said there are firns that will not be burdened
with an associate taking on a case. He also opined that
enpl oynent discrimnation is an area with a |lot of confusion; it
is often a he-said-she-said situation. The HCR di smi sses about
65 percent of its cases because there is no substantial evidence
of discrimnation. He said if the anendnment is adopted, then
"everyone of those enployers who was found not to have done
anything wong, basically, would be subject to a demand letter
that says, 'you need to pay now or you're going to be subject to

full attorney's fees later."" It ratchets up the leverage for a
settlenment, so a |lot of enployers who did nothing wong will get
one of those letters, he warned. He said Rule 82 provides

sufficient recovery for fees currently.

2:55:34 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -27- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON surm sed then, that two-thirds of the
time there is no nerit, but [enployers] will get a threatening
letter saying they will pay attorney fees and costs. He said he
has been in the opposite case in defending the enpl oyer.

MR. RUARO concurr ed.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE asked if the amendnent fails, will M. Ruaro stil
push his position of wthdrawal of Amendnent 3.

MR. RUARO explained that he has worked wth Representative
Anderson on a replacenent to Anendnent 3, which would take out
any reference to a statute of limtations as a set period of
time and leave it at the discretion of the HRC as it is now
Since the statute is a function of policy and available
resources, it would be best for the HRC to continue to contro
it. He said the HRC has done it that way for quite a few years.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said that really neans that you would go back to
180 days.

MR. RUARO concurred, but the HRC could reviewit.
The commttee took an at-ease from2:57 p.m to 2:58 p. m
2:57:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that M. Ruaro shouldn't have
spoken about Representative Gara's |aw practice. He said he
doesn't wunderstand M. Ruaro's comment about working for |arge
firms. The reason people can't get representation in enploynent
cases is that Rule 82 says that attorneys get only 20 percent of
their fees and costs when they win their case, he noted. A
person with a small case won't get paid representation, and that
is the whole point of the Consuner Protection Act and |abor |aws
and of this anendnent, he stated. "If you have a good case we
want you to be able to get your recovery of your attorney's fees
so that you can say to an attorney from the outset, 'Look, |
don't have a very big case, but if we wn youll get
conpensated. ' "

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON said Representative Gara does not have
statistics to show that people not going to attorneys for such
cases.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that the commttee is spending too nuch
time tal king about the subject, but he had "a | ot of people cone

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 28- February 6, 2006



to the law firm..with enploynent cases." He said damages in
enpl oynment cases tend to be very | ow.

3: 00: 56 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Gara, G uenberg
Kott and McGQuire voted in favor of Anmendment 6. Representatives
Coghill, WIson and Anderson voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 6 carried by a vote of 4-3.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noved to offer Anmendnment 7 as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, line 3:
Del ete "new subsecti ons"”
| nsert "a new subsection”

Page 2, lines 7-9:
Delete all material.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON expl ai ned that Anendnent 7 provides a
deletion on page 2 "so there is not plural of reference to
subsections for lines 4 through 6, related and attached to the
neat of the amendnment, which is deleting lines 7 through 9 on
page 2, which states that a conplaint can be filed not |ater
than 180 days. And what that neans is that we're taking out a

reference in the bill setting a statute of limtations to file a
charge through the conmssion. And it would revert back to what
the current regulations state. And ny opinion, and the

Departnment of Law s opinion, was that the statute that we have
here is really a function of policy and it's better to leave it
to the regulations to interpret how many days you have to grieve

or to make a conplaint. And that that will be evolving and wll
change relative to the conm ssion and regul atory oversight. And
it shouldn't be indelible in statute." He questioned the

effects of the last amendnent and if Amendnent 7 is still
necessary.

MR. RUARO suggested that Amendnment 7 is still necessary.
3:03:29 PM
CHAI R MCGQUI RE rel ayed that she supports either concept, and that

human rights are very inportant. She added that she is
synpathetic to testinmony from the departnent and the HRC that

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 29- February 6, 2006



there aren't enough resources "and there needs to be a reduction
in time from what this commttee decided, then | am supportive
of Representative Gara's policy of allowing sone of the folks in
the private sector to have an incentive to pick up the work that
needs to be done to ensure that we have a good basis of hunman
rights in this state.” \Wen people are "sexually discrimnated
agai nst" or discrimnated against based on their gender or skin
color, it is sensitive and the tendency, especially for wonen
is to put it aside and try to work through the issues and put on
a brave face, she said. A conplaint filed after 180 days does
not negate its reality, she added. "It may be that that person
tries to work it out, and within a year they realize they
can't," she stated. She said her instinct is that "the mnute
that this commttee...adjourns, ...you guys are going to conme up
with an action plan for how to withdraw the substantive policy
of Representative Gara's anendnent. And so that when this bil
appears on the floor, it's going to not only have that provision
out, but it's going to have a reversal of the days, which is
unacceptable to ne."

MR. RUARO noted that with regard to the statute of limtations,
he said that one wuld still have the Equal Enploynent
Qpportunity Conmmi ssion (EEOC) available with a 300-day limt.
He said he found out that the two-year statute of limtations
for the court system provides access to Rule 100, Al aska Rules
of GCivil Procedure, which says that a party can ask for
nmedi ation and arbitration. He said he thinks there are a |ot of
di fferent avenues.

3:07:20 PM

CHAIR MCGQUI RE asked what the basis is for filing a Rule 100
claim

MR. RUARO expl ained that "basically the party has to desire to
have nediation or arbitration occur. | haven't seen a court
deny a notion yet. | filed several of themin private practice;
t hey were never denied."

CHAI R MCGUI RE said she is not that conpelled by the EECC because
she doesn't support naking a policy stating that human rights
are a federal issue, and the state doesn't need to worry about
them She said she is willing to explore Rule 100.

3:08: 14 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 30- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is not aware of anywhere else
in the law where the legislative authority is delegated on a
statute of limtations, which is traditionally statutory, to an
executive agency. He surm sed that that is an unconstitutiona
del egati on of authority.

MR. RUARO said he doesn't have a case, but he thinks it has been
that way for over 10 years.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that would have sone weight, but
not a lot if it has never been challenged. He is concerned
about going on record delegating to the agency. Wth respect to
Rule 100, it is a general nediation, so "why have a human rights
commssion if you're going to turn these cases all over to
general arbitration or nediation?" He said he doesn't know that
there's any authority under this to order arbitration wthout
stipulation of the parties. Mediation is nonbinding, he pointed
out .

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that M. Ruaro's reference to Rule

100 bolsters the case for [Anendnent 6]. He said a person
cannot get nediation unless there is a lawsuit, and that person
will not be able to find an attorney to file a lawsuit w thout

t he amendnent .

MR. RUARO di sagreed that there is an inability to find attorneys
for such cases. He said small cases provide sonme of the best
returns in dollars per hours, based on his own experience.

3:12: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if those were human rights cases.

MR. RUARO sai d no.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA contended that human rights cases are very
different.

3:12:48 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ve Anderson voted in
favor of Amendnent 7. Representatives MCGuire, Coghill, WIson,
Kot t, Gara and Guenberg voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 7 failed by a vote of 1-6.

3:13:29 PM

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 31- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HCS SB 132(STA), as
anended, out of commttee with individual recomendati ons and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

The conmttee took an at-ease from3:14 p.m to 3:14 p.m

CHAIR MCGUI RE, after determning that there were no objections,
announced HCS SB 132(JUD) was reported from the House Judiciary
Standing Comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved that the committee introduce a
concurrent resolution approving a title change to reflect the
anendnents. Hearing no objections, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to waive the referral of the
concurrent resolution to the House Judiciary Standing Commttee,
"so it can go directly to the floor with the bill."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he thinks it would be referred to
the next commttee of referral.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d okay.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noted that if the bill changes, then the
House Concurrent Resolution will be meaningl ess.

[ HCS SB 132(JUD) was reported fromconmmttee.]

HB 379 - CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, | NCL. ANALOGS

3:15: 32 PM

CHAI R MCGUI RE announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 379, "An Act relating to controlled
subst ances. " She noted that the conmmttee was still on
Version G and that she had anendnments that she agreed to offer
on behal f of the sponsor.

M CHAEL PAW.OWSKI, staff to Representative Kevin Meyer, sponsor
of HB 379, relayed that, according to the chemsts at the
[Alaska's Scientific Crine Detection Laboratory], there are
legitimate industrial uses for the analogues to Ganma Hydroxy
Butyrate (GHB). Thus, Amendnment 1 seeks to protect those
[imted uses. Amendnent 1, |abeled 24-LS1396\G 1, Luckhaupt,
2/ 6/ 06, reads as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, lines 13-14:

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 32- February 6, 2006



Delete all material and insert:
"(2) when intended or used for human consunpti on:
(A) gamma butyrol act one( GBL) ;
(B) 1,4 butanediol (BD);
(© gamma hydr oxyval erat e( GHV) ;
(D) gamma-val erol act one 4-pentanolide(GWL)."

MR. PAW.OWSKI said Amendnent 1 adds GHV and GVL to the bill,
which are federally recognized analogs to GHB that the [United
States] Drug Enforcenent Agency has identified. It is in
conjunction wth Anmendnent 2, he added.

3:17:31 PM

CHRI S BEHEI M Supervisor, Scientific Crinme Detection Laboratory,
Anchorage, said he agrees that GHV and GVL are |listed as
anal ogs, and there are legitimte uses for the 1,4 butanediol
and GBL as solvents, but he can't say that they are used in
Al aska for any purpose. They are used for the manufacture of
pl astics and certain fibers, he said, but it nmakes sense to have
them controlled for illicit uses.

3:18:12 PM

CHAIR MCGU RE noved to adopt Amendnent 1. Hearing no
obj ections, Amendnment 1 was adopt ed.

CHAIR MCGU RE noved to adopt Anmendnment 2 as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

Page 1, line 15, through page 2, |ine 23:
Delete all material .

Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

MR. PAW.OWSKI said Section 2 of the bill was broad and over
reachi ng—egul ating "chemcals that we didn't want to touch.”

Hearing no objections, Anendnment 2 was adopt ed.
REPRESENTATIVE GARA said he wants to make sure that the

| egislation only outlines substances that are being used in the
"date rape" drug and nothi ng beyond that. He said that on page

1, line 6, it says "any of these materials...or which contain
any of its salts or isonmers.” He asked if subsets of these
chemcals are nade illegal by the legislation and if there are

| egitimate uses for them

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 33- February 6, 2006



MR BEHEIM noted that there are legitinmate uses for GHB
including a prescription drug that is categorized as schedule
1l federally; however, the GHB that is nobst encountered would
be in the illicit form He said the GHB cones in different
forms: an acid or a salt of an acid.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the bill should be nore detailed to
protect |egal uses.

MR. BEHEIM said that in the federal schedule, GHB is in both
schedul e I--which has no legitinmate use—and in schedule Ill. He
said if it is abused, the schedule 11l substance becones a
schedul e I substance.

3:21:16 PM

MR. PAWONSKI relayed that salts or isomers are standard
descriptions, and nmaking a salt is something that he is vague
about . He said with the | anguage of "when intended or used for
human consunption,” he believes that the bill is "getting away
fromlegitimte uses." He added, "As to the nedical side of it,
|"m honestly not sure, but | thought that was exenpted under
Control |l ed Substances Act because of the way you get into the
violation in the first place."

MR. BEHEIM gave an exanple with regard to salts. He said
cocaine is encountered in tw fornms, one as the hydrochloride
salt and the other is as the base, which is crack cocai ne. Mny
drugs conme in many forns, he added, and there are also different
i soners.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he just wants to nmake sure that
substances with legitimte uses are not being nmade illegal under
this |egislation. He noted that M. Beheim said there was a
prescription formof GHB

MR. BEHEI M pointed out that GHB is the "sanme, exact chemical" in
a prescription form which is a sodiumsalt, but when there is a
legitimate prescription it is a federal schedule Il1 substance

He said the same chemical in the sane form can be illicitly
abused, so both fornms are controlled but they are in different
schedul es.

MR. PAW.OMNBKI noted that oxycodone is covered as a schedule I,

but sonehow the legitinate use is protected. "This woul d put
GHB in the sane schedul e,” he said.

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 34- February 6, 2006



3:24: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pondered whether there is a need to add
| anguage that says "except for that form of GHB that 1is
permtted by prescription use."

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said she does not know how that is handled,
because there are things in the schedule where there is no
evidence "that prosecutors are out there running ranpant
prosecuting people for these legitinmate uses."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG posited that adding sonething to
schedule | A allows it to be prescribed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested doi ng research on that point.

CHAIR MCGUI RE expressed that the bill wll go to the House
Finance Commttee, and she said it is likely not the sponsor's
intent to crimnalize uses of reasonabl e substances. She added
that she is confortable passing the bill out with the assurance
from M. Pawl owski that he will send the commttee a nmeno about
how | egiti mate uses are protected.

3:27: 03 PM

MR. PAW.OABKI agreed to do so.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Anmendnent 3 in order
to narrow the title as tightly as possible because he does not

want to see a marijuana bill com ng back in disguise.

MR. PAW.OASKI suggested a title that says, "including GHB and
its federally recogni zed anal ogs. "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked who the drafter is.
MR. PAW.OABKI said Jerry Luckhaupt.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested a final version of the bil
in the aforenentioned neno to the comrittee fromthe sponsor.

3:28: 38 PM

CHAIR MGUI RE, after determning that there were no objections,
announced that Conceptual Anendnment 3 was adopt ed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 35- February 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to report HB 379, as anmended, out of
commttee with individual recomendati ons and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said the fiscal note is pending.

CHAIR MGU RE, after determning that there were no objections,
announced that CSHB 379(JUD) was reported out of the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conm tt ee.

ADJ QURNVENT

3:29: 04 PM

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:29 p. m

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE - 36- February 6, 2006



